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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT DEPUTY
WESTERN DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON
AT SEATTLE
3 SZ ]
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, (/ 0 5 1 9 7 9 )
Case No.
Plaintiff, _ '
, STIPULATED PRELIMINARY

V. INJUNCTION AND ORDER FOR

OTHER EQUITABLE RELIEF

MATTHEW OLSON and JENNTFER LeROY, | AS TO MATTHEW OLSON AND
JENNIFER LeROY

Drefendants.

Plaintiff Federal Trade Commission, pursuant to Sections 13(b) and 19 of the Federal Trade
Conunission Act ("FTC Act”), 15 US.C. §§ 53(b) and 57b, and the Controlling the Assault of
Non-Solicited Pornography and Marketing Act of 2003 ("CAN-SPAM Act™), 15 U.S.C, § 770G(n), has
filed a Complaint for Injunctian and Other Equitgble Relief. Withoul imy admission of any
wrongdoing or violation of the law, the plaintiff and dafandants have voluntanly agreed to the entry of
the following stipulated order [or preliminary injunciion ("Ouder”).

The Cougt, being advised in the premiscs, finds as follows:

FINDINGS OF ¥YACUT
1. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this case, and there is pood cansc

to believe that the Court will have junsdiction over the parties;

2. venue lisg properly with this Court;

FENERAL TRADE COMMISSION
915 Second Ave., Su. 289
Seaitle, Wikhipgon 981 7d
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3. Plaintifl"s Complaint states a claam upon which relieCmay be granted against defendants
under Scetion 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.B.C. §§ 45(a). and the CAN-SPAM Aact, 15 U.3.C. § 7704(a);

4. The acts and practices of defendants ars in or affacting commerce, as defined in
Section 4 ol the FTC Act, 15 1).5.C. § 44; and

5. The Order is in the public interesi.

DEFINITIONS

1. “Agget” or “Assets™ means any lepal or equitable interest in, right 10, or ¢laim to, any
rcal and/or parsonal property including, but not limited to, chattels, goods, instruments, equipment,
fixtures, general intangibles, effects, leascholds, 1n4il or other deliveries, inventory, checls, notes,
accounts, credits, comiracts, receivables, shares of stock, funds, monics, and all cash, wherever located,
including toth within and sutaide the territorial United States, and shall include hoth exisling assets
amq agsets acquired after the daie of entry of this Order.

2 “Defendant™ or “Defendants™ means Matthew Qlson and Jennifer LeRoy.

3 “Document™ is synonymaus in meaning and equal in scope 1o the usage of the term as
defined in Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 34(a), and includes writings, drawings, graphs, charts,
photagraphs, andio and video recardings, computer records, and other data compilations from which
mformation can ke obtained and iranslated, if necessary, threugh delestion dévices nlo reasonahly
usable form. A draft or non-identical copy is o separates document within the meming of the tarm.

4. “¥inancfal institution™ means any bank, savings and loan ingtitution, eredit union, or
amy finmmcial depository of any kind, iocluding, but not limited to, any brokerage house, trustes,
broker-dealer, escrow agent, litle company, payment processing company, commodity trading
company, or precious metal dealer.

5. “Header Information” is defined in 15 U.S.C. § 7702(B) and mcans the source,
destination, and routing information attached to an elestronic mail message, including the originating
dommann name and onginating electronic mail address, and any other information Wl appesrs in the line
identifying, or purporting to identify, a person initiating the message.

6. “Initiating” or “Initiate™ is defined in 15 11,8.C. § 7702(V) and means to originate or

transmit 2 commercial cloctronic mail message or (o procore the origination or transmission ol such

FLRIERAL TRALE COMMISSNN
413 Mpoonnd Avo., Sw. 2890
+11 Seartle, Washingtoa 98174
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message, but docs not include actions that constitute routine conveyanse of such message. For
purposss of this definition, “precure,” as defined in 15 US.C. § 7702(12), means inlentionally to pay
or provide ather consideration to, or induce, another pergon to nitiale such a commercial electianin
mail mesgage an one’s behalf. |

1. “Person” mcans & natural person, an organization or other legal entily, including 2
comuraliom, partnership, sole propretorship, Jimited Hability company, associabion, cooperative, or any
other group or comhination acting, as an entity.

8. “Plaintifi” means the Federal Trade Commigsion (“Commigsion” or “FTC™).

9. “Protected computer” is defined in 15 U.S.C. § 7702(13) and 18 U.5.C.

§ 1030{e){2}B) and meane a computer which is uzed in interstate or foreign commerce or
commiunication, including a computer located outside the United States that iz used in a manner that
affects interstale or farei gn commerge ar communication of the United States.
ORDER
conraon R TR MR AT S ORI v
MARKETING ACT OF 2003

IT IS THEREFORE. ORDERED that the defendants, and their officers, agents, sarvants,
employees, attorneys, and al! other persons or entities in active concert or participation with them who
receive actual notice of this Order by peraonal service, facsimile, or otherwise, whether acting directly
or through any trust, corporation, subsidiary, division, or other devics, ur any of them, are herohy
temporatity restrained and eujoined from violating, the provisions contained in Scctions 5 and & of the
CAN-SPAM Act, 13 11.S.C. §§ 7704 and 7705, as currently promulgated or as they may hercaficr be
amended, or any rule, regulation, or requirement adopted pursuant thereto, including, but not limited o,
by initiating the transmigsion, to protecied computers, of 8 commereial cmail messape that:

A Coniains, or is accompanied by, header information that is materially false or
misleading in violation of Section 5(a)(1) of the CAN-SPAM Aect, 15 US.C. § 7704{a)(1), ncluding,
but not limited to, 2 message with header information that is misleading becanse the person initiating
the message knowingly uscs another protected computer to relay or retransmit the message or inserts a
falsc connecting host for purposes of disguising its origin;

FERDERAL TRALNE COMMDSION
915 Seconwt Ave., Su_ 280

stipulated Pl - Page 3 "“""f;lﬂj“ﬂ';“:;,}“' 1




b W R

L

M DB A3

10
11
12
13
14
13
16
17
L8
19
20
2]
23
23
24
25
26
27
28

Case 2:05-cv-01979-JCC  Document 3  Filed 12/07/2005 Page 4 of 9

B. Contains subject headings that are: likely (¢ cuslead a recipient, a¢tmy reasonably nndet
the circumstances, about a matenial fact regarding the contents or gubject matler of the message, in
violation of Scetion 5(2)(2) ol the CAN-SPAM Act, 153 U.S.C. § 7704(a)2);

C. Fails 10 include a ¢lear and conspiviuous nolice of the recipicnt’s
opportunity to decline (o receive further electronic mail messages fiom the sender, in violetion of
Section S{a)(HANiD) of the CAN-SPAM Act, 15 U.S.C. § 7704{a)5H A1)

D.  Fails to include a functioning return electronic mai? address or other Internel-based
mechanism, clearly and conspicuously digplayed, that a recipient may usc ta aubmil 3 reply clectronic
mail metguge or other form of Internet-based commumication requasting ot to recciva fulure
commerrial electronic mail megsages, from that sender, at the electronic mail address where the
message was recelved, and that remaing capable of reteiving such replies for no less than thirty (30)
days after the transmission of the original message, in violation of Section 5(a)(3)}A) of the CAN-
SPAM Act, 15 U.5.C. § 7T704(a)(3XA);

E. Advertises or promotes produets or services but fails to include clear and conspicuous
identification thal the messags is an advertisement or solicitation, in violation of Section S(a)(5)(AX)
of the CAN-SPAM Act, 15 U.S.C. § 7704(a)5X AX1); and

E. Advertises or promotes praducts or services but feils to include a valid physical postal
address of the sender in violation of Section S(R}S)(A)(iii) of the CAN-SPAM Act, 15 US.C.

§ 7704(aX ) A)Gi).
I1. ASSET FREEZE

T IS FURTHER ORDERED Lyl the defendanis, and their afficers, agents, servanis,
employces, altomeys, end all other persons or entities in active concert or participation with them who
receive actual nolice of this Order by personal service, facaimile, or otherwise, whether acting directly
or through any tust, corporation, subsidiary, division, or other device, or any of them, axcept as apread
to in writing by the parties or as dirceted by further order of the Court, are temporarily testrained snd
cnioined from, except as provided it paragraph I1D:

A. Selling, hquidating, assigning, transierring, converting, loaning, encwmbering, pledging,
cencealing, dissipating, spending, disborsing, withdrawing, or otherwise disposing of any agsels

FEDERAL TRA - & OMMISSION
OLE Second Ave., S, 280
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wherever located, including any assets outside the territorial United States, that arc:

1, In the actual or constructive possassion of any defendant;

2. Owned or controlled by, or held for the benefit of, or subjeet to access by, or
belonging (o, any defendant; or

3. In the actusl or constructive possession of, owned or controtled by, subjcct Lo
access hy, or belonging to, any corporation, partnership, trusl, or any olwr coiity
directly or indirectly owned, mznaged, or controlied by, or under common
control with, any defendant including, but not limited 1o, any assets held by or
for any defendant at any bank or savings and loan institution, credit union,
independent service orgenization, independent credit card processing company,
or with any broker-dealer, escrow agent, title company, commadlity trading
company, precious metal dealer, commeon carrier, credit card processing agent,
cushomy broker, commercial mgil roceiving sod/or forwarding ygency,
commercial freight holding and/or forwarding agency, or financial istitution or
deposiory of any lind.

B. Opening or causing 1o be opened any safe deposit boxes or storage facilitics titted in the
name of any defendant, or subject 1o access by any defendant or wnder any defendant’s control, without
providing plantiff with pnor notice #od a rcasonablc epportunity te first inspect the confents in order
to determing whethér they contain any assets covered by this Part;

C. Failing te hold and account for all assets, including, withoul limitation, payments, loans,
and gifts, reccived after service of this Onder; and

D, Delendant Jennifer LeRoy may, without violating this section, we¢ funds in Washington
Mutnal Bank, account number 3743640258, which rhe jucluded an her financin statement of
mdividust defendant datad and signed oo November 27, 2005, Defondant Matthew Olson may,
without violating this section, use funds in Wells Farge Qnline account, account number 2108105905,
witich he included on his finangial stetement of individual defendimt dated and signed on November
28, 2005, The asset frceze provisions may be further modified by rgreement of the parties or by order
of the Court.

FEDERAL TELADE C1MMEEION
815 Seoond A, So, 2806

Sentth:, Werhington 98174
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IIE, DUTIES OF THIRD PARTIES HOLDING DEFENDANTS' ASSETS

IT 15 FURTHER ORNERED that, effective immediately upon notification of this Order, any
financia! inslitution, or any person or ather entity served with a copy of this Ordcr, of who otherwise
has actual knowledse of this Ordet, that has possession, custody, or control of any account, asset, or
document heid on behalf of, or relating or belonging to, any defendant, shall, except as provided in
paragraph IL.D:

A.  Hold and retain within such entity’s or person’s control, and prohibit the withdrawal,
removal, assignment, transfer, pledge, Lypothecation, encumbrance, disbursemment, dissipation,
convarsion, sale, Nquidation, of other disposal of any funds, decwments, property. or other assets held
by or under such entity’s or person’s ¢ontrol:

1. On hehelf of, or for the bemefit of, any defendant;

2, In any account maintained in the name of, or subject io withdrawsl by, any
defendani; or

3 Subyject to access or usa by, or under the signatory power of, any defendant,

B. Deny access to any safe deposit boxeas that are either;

L, Titlad in the name, individually or joinlly, or held on behalf or for the benefit, of
any defendant; or
Z. Subject to aceoss by mmy defendant;

C. Provide to connsel for the Commission, within five () busiuwss days, by fesimile or by
overnight delivery, a sworn statement selimng forth:

I, The identificaiion of cach account or asset titled in the narc, individually or
jomntly, or held on behalf or for the benefit, of any defendant;

2. The balance of cach such account, or a description of the hature 4nd value of
such asset:

3. The identification of any safe depasit box that is cither titled in the name of,
individually or jointly, or otherwise subject to access or control by, any defendant; and
4, If the account, safe deposit box, of other asset has been elosed or removed, the

date closed or removed and the halance on said date.

FEDERAT, TRADLE COMMM LESION
313 Socored Awe My, 2506
13 H b h 3
Stipulated PI - Page 6 e e




e L b

b~ - - Y R« N

10
11
12
13
14
15
6
17
18
19
20
21

23
24
25
26
27
28

‘Case 2:05-cv-01979-JCC  Document 3  Filed 12/07/2005 Page 7 of 9

D. The accounts and assets subject to this Part include existing accounts and assetx, and
accounls created and assets deposited afler the effective date of this Order. This Part shall not prohibit
transfers in accordance with any provision of this Order o any funllwx order of the Comtd,

B. The FIC is granted leave, pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 45, to subpoema documents
immediately from mty such financial institution, account custodian, or other entity concerning the
nature, location, status, and extent of the defendants” asscis, as well as compliance with this Order, and
such financial institution, account custodian, or other entity shall respond to such subpoena within five
(3) business days after service.

V. RECORD KEEPING/MAINTAINING BUSINESS RECORDS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the defendants, and their officors, agents, servanis,
employees, attorneys, and all other persanz or enlities in active concert or participation with them whe
receive actual notice of this Order by personal scrvice, facsimile, or otherwise, whether acting directly
or through any trust, corporation, subsidiary, division, or other deviee, or any of them, arg Wompornily
restrained and enjoined from:

A. Failing to make and keep books, records, aceounts, bank statcments, current
eccountants’ reports, general ledgery, general journals, cash receipts ledgers, cash disbursements
ledgers, documents indicating title to real or personal property, and any other data which, in reasonable
detail, accuratcly and fairly refleet the transactions and dispositions of the asscis of defondants; and

B.  Destroying, srasing, mutilating, concealing, allering, ramsferring or olherwise disposing
of, in any manncr, directly ot indirectly, contracts, agreements, customer files, enstamer Tista, cigiomer
addresses and telephone numbers, correspondence, advertisements, brochures, sales material, training
matcrial, aales presentations, documents evidencing or referring to defendants” products or services,
data, computer tapes, disks, or other computerized racords, tooks, written or printed records,
handwritten notes, telephone logs, video tape recordings, receipt books, inveices, pestal recsipts,
ledgers, personal and business canceled checks (fronts and backs) and cheek repisters, bank statements,
appoinimen| books, copies of foderal, state or loca] business or personal income o propetty tax telums,
and other documents or records of any kind, including electromcally stored materials, that relatc to the

businoss practices or business or personal finaness of uny defendant or other entities directly or

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION
815 Becord Ave,, S0 2596
" Ecallle, Washinglon 98174
Stipnlatcd PT - Page 7 {206) 220-6.350
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indircetly under the conirol of any defendant, This provision applies documents and records whercvor
located, including outside the territoriel Uniled States.
V. REQUIRED DISTRIBUTION OF ORDER BY DEFENDANTS

IT 15 FURTHER ORDERED thai the defendants shall, within three (3) calendar days after
service of this Order, provide a copy of this Qrder to cach affiliaie, partner, division, sales entity,
successoz, assign, officer, direcior, employee, independent contractor, agent, attorney, amil/or
representative of any defendant. Within five (5) calendar days following zervice of this Order by the
pluintiff, the defendants shall serve on the plaintiff an affidavit identifying the name, title, address,
telephone number, date of service, and mannet of setviee of each person or entity the defendants served
with a copy of thig Order in compliance with this provision.

V1. SERVICE OF ORDER

IT IS FURTHER QRDERED that copies of this Order may he setved by facsimile
transmission, peraonal or overnight delivery, or by first class 1.5, mail, by agents and employees of the
Commission or any state, federal or foreign law enforcement agency, or by private process server, on:
(1) any financiel institution, cntity, or person that holds, controis, or maintaing custady of any
documents or assets of any defendant, or that held, controlled, or maintained custody of any documents
or asects of any defendant; or (2) any other person or entity that may be subject tn any pravision of this
Order. Servies upon any branch or office of any financial institution or entity shall cffect service upon
Ihe eulire Gnancial institution or entify,

VII. WAIVER OF SERVICE FOR COMPLAINT AND SUMMONS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the defendants waive service of the Complaint and
Summons, The Complaint, which defendants have received a copy of, was filed on the same day and
lime as this Stipulated Preliminary Injunction.

VIII, CREDIT REFORTS

1T IS FURTHER ORDERED that pursuant to Section 604{a){1) of the Fair Credit Reporting

Act, 15 U.S.C. § 16811aX 1), any consumer reporting agency may farnish a consumer repor

concerning any defendant to the Commission.

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSHIN
015 Second Ave., Su. 2890
- . Sealile, Whinglon 9X1
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IX. RETENTION OF JURISDICTION
1T IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Court ehall retain jurizdiction of this matter for all

pUIpOses.

Dated thisl day of D - _, 2005,

ITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE *

Stipulated by:

-
4-& Wﬁ_ puct: /112 /oS
@Eﬁ,mmsm BA #2555 '
XINER PANSELL, WSBA #9418

tiomeys for Plainifl
Federal Trade Commission

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION
515 Socomd Ave., Su. 2k9h
. Scateke, Washingeon 94174
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